ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 25, 2017
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Shel | ey Hughes, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senat or John Coghi | |

Senat or Tom Begi ch

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Gary Stevens

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW K-12 FOUNDATI ON FORMULA
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

M NDY LOBAUGH, School Fi nance Specialist 11

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information on the K-12 Foundati on
For mul a.

M CHAEL JOHNSON, Ph.D., Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions about the Foundation
For mul a.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:03:16 AM

CHAIR SHELLEY HUGHES <called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- January 25, 2017



order were Senators G essel, Begich, and Chair Hughes. Senator
Coghill arrived shortly thereafter.

OVERVI EW K-12 FOUNDATI ON FORMJLA

8:03:49 AM

CHAI R HUGHES announced that the only order of business would be
a presentation by Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent
(DEED) on the K-12 Foundation Fornula. She noted that the K-12
formula is about $1.3 billion, and she thought it inportant for
the commttee to understand the details. She requested that
menbers' questions be held until the end of the presentation.

8:06: 31 AM

At ease due to technical problens.

8:06:41 AM

M NDY LOBAUGH, School Finance Specialist 11, Departnent of

Education and Early Devel opment (DEED), presented information on
the K-12 Foundati on Formul a.

8:06: 59 AM
At ease

8:08: 18 AM
CHAIR HUGHES noted that menbers could view the witten
presentati on.

M5. LOBAUGH began by provided the history of the state public
school funding formula. It was established under SB 36 in 1998
and inplemented in 1999. It is defined in Al aska Statute 14.17.

She provided an outline of her presentation:

1. Cctober count and Average Daily
Menmber ship (ADM) .

2. Cal cul ations of Adjusted Average Daily Menbership
(AADM) .

3. Calculation of Basic Need.

4. Fundi ng Conponents of Basic Need ~ (Wo Pays)

5. Additional Funds above Basic Need
8:09: 58 AM

M5. LOBAUGH di scussed average daily nenbership (ADM reporting
requirenents:

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- January 25, 2017



ADM is the nunmber of enrolled students during the 20
school -day count period ending on the fourth Friday of
Cct ober .

Reports are due within two weeks after the end of the 20
school -day count peri od.

Proj ected student count reports are due Novenber 5.

M5. LOBAUGH addressed who qualifies as a student and revi ewed
the eligibility for state foundation funding:

A child who is 6 years of age before Septenber 1, and under
the age of 20, and has not conpleted the 12th grade.

A child who is 5 years of age before Septenber 1, nay enter
ki ndergarten.

A child with a disability and an active |Individualized
Education Program (1 EP) nmay attend school if at the age of
3 or if under the age of 22 by July 1.

She listed the six steps to the district adjusted ADM used to
calculate entitlenent:

Step 1. Adjust: ADM for School Size
Step 2. Apply: District Cost Factor
Step 3. Apply: Special Needs Factor
Step 4. Apply: Vocational & Technical Factor (CTE)
Step 5. Add: Intensive Services Count
Step 6. Add: Correspondence Student Count
8:11:56 AM
At ease
8:12:43 AM

CHAI R HUGHES noted the presence of Commr ssioner Johnson fromthe
Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent ( DEED).

8:13:19 AM
M5. LOBAUGH reviewed Step 1 of the ADM adjustnent for school
size. She noted that a conmmunity wth an ADM of :
Under 10 is added to the snmallest school with an ADM
greater than 10.
10 through 100 in Gades K-12, the ADM is conbined and
adj usted once; adjusted as one school .

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 25, 2017



101 through 425 - ADM for grades K-6 and 7-12 are adjusted
separately; adjusted as two school s.
Greater than 425 - the ADM of each facility adm nistered
separately as one school is adjusted.

She addressed how the ADM is adjusted for alternative schools
and charter school s:

Al ternative school with an ADM of 175 or greater and
adm nistered as a separate facility the ADMw || be
adj ust ed separately, unless:

1. It isin the first year of service with
ADM bet ween 120 to 175 recei ves an adj ust nent
of 1.33; OR

2. It had an ADM of 175 or greater in the prior year
but drops below 175 in the current fiscal year it
will receive an adjustnment of 1.33; OR

3. It has an ADM of less than 175 it shall be counted as
a part of the school in the district with the hi ghest
ADM

Charter school with an ADM of 150 or greater is adjusted
as a separate facility unl ess:

1. It isin the first year of service with ADM
between 75 to 150 it receives an adjustnent of
1.45; OR

2. It had an ADM of 75 or greater in the prior year
but drops below this in the current fiscal year it
will receive an adjustnent of 1.45; OR

3. It continues to stay below 75 ADM then it receives an
adj ustnrent of 1.18.

She showed an exanple of the projected FY2017 ADM for the None
Public Schools. She detailed the adjustnent by school size
paranmeters and described the calculations for grades K-6 and 7-
12.

8:18: 35 AM

M5. LOBAUGH described how it would work for the Anvil Charter
School, a youth facility, and the total school size adjusted
ADM

8:19: 25 AM

M5. LOBAUGH reviewed the hold harmess provision. It is
available up to three years, provided the district stays below

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- January 25, 2017



the base year. She conpared the differences by year. She said
under st andi ng the base year is key for districts.

The Hold Harm ess provision was established for those
districts experiencing a reduction in enrollnent. To
determne eligibility, the district’s sum total of the
School Size Adjustnent is conpared against the prior fiscal
year. |If a decrease of 5% or greater has occurred, then the
prior fiscal year will becone the base.

It is available up to 3 years provided district stays bel ow
t he base year.

1st year 75% of difference to the base year is retained.
2nd year 50% of difference to the base year is retained.
3rd year 25% of difference to the base year is retained.

8:21:40 AM
She again used Nonme Public Schools to denonstrate the hold
har m ess provi sion.

M5. LOBAUGH turned to Step 2 - the district cost factors which
are specific to each school district and range from 1.000 to
2.116. The fornula is to nultiply the school size adjusted ADM
by the district cost factor.

She showed how it applies to Nome.

She related that Step 3 involves special needs funding. It
i ncludes speci al education (except i ntensive), vocat i onal
education, gifted/talented, and bilingual/bicultural. These are
bl ock funded at 20 percent.

She showed how it would work i n Nome.

8:24: 05 AM

M5. LOBAUGH explained Step 4, vocational and technical funding.
Career & Technical Education (CTE) is funded at a factor of
1.015. It is intended to assist districts in providing career
and technical education services in grades seven through 12. It
excludes <costs associated wth admnistrative expenses and
instruction in general literacy, mathematics, and job readi ness
skills.

She showed how it would be figured for None.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- January 25, 2017



M5. LOBAUGH explained that Step 5 is funding for intensive
services. A school district will receive funding for intensive
services students that:

1. Are receiving intensive services and;

2. Enrolled on the last day of the 20-school-day count
peri od and;

3. Meet intensive qualifications for each intensive
servi ces student.

She pointed out that (Intensive Student Count) x 13 = Intensive
Student Funding and an Intensive Services student generates
$77, 090.

None Public Schools has five students that qualify, and she
showed the cal cul ati ons.

M5. LOBAUGH turned to Step 6, correspondence progranms. Districts
of fering correspondence prograns receive funding based on 90
percent of the correspondence ADM The formula is to multiply
the correspondence ADM tines .90 to get the level of funding

and each correspondence ADM generates $5, 337.

The Nonme Public Schools reported 10 correspondence students. She
showed how Basic Need for Nonme is calculated: multiply the
district adjusted ADM by the BSA to get the Basic Need
entitlement.

8:27:58 AM
M5. LOBAUGH summarized all steps as they apply to the None
Public School District's Basic Need summari zed.

8:.28:58 AM

MS. LOBAUGH turned to the conponents of Basic Need and addressed
who pays. It consists of a required local contribution, federa
i npact aid, and state aid.

She addressed the full and true value/ | ocal effort
cal cul ations. The current year full and true value, as provided
annually by the State Assessor's Ofice, is multiplied by 2.65
mls for the purposes of calculation the required local effort
for foundation funding.

8:30:13 AM

She described the calculations required for the | ocal
contribution and used Nonme as an exanpl e.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 25, 2017



8: 30: 52 AM

MR. LOBAUGH addressed the Title VII Federal Inpact A d paynents
which are received from March 1 through the |ast day of February
and are used as paynent for Basic Need. The state nust first
deduct out the federal funding for special education (SPED)
1/5th Native | ands, and construction funds.

She described how it worked for None.

8:31: 55 AM

She expl ained inpact aid percentage. The fornula for that is the
required local contribution divided by the budgeted | ocal
contribution. The budgeted l|ocal contribution, for the purposes
of <calculating the inpact aid percentage, is found in the
budgets submitted on July 15 of each year and may consist of:
appropriations, investnent earnings, in-kind services, and other
| ocal funding.

She worked the fornula for the Title VII percentage for None.

8:33: 01 AM

She figured out the inpact aid calculations for Nome. She
pointed out that regional educational attendance areas do not
require the 42.1 percent. Their eligible amunt is applied
agai nst 90 percent.

8:34: 20 AM
M5. LOBAUGH summarized the state aid for None, resulting in
$8, 803, 771.

She noted there are additional funds above Basic Need such as
addi tional |ocal contributions and Quality Schools G ants.

She showed how the calculation is done for additional | ocal
contribution for None and the nmaxinmum |ocal contribution for
None.

8:36: 36 AM

MS. LOBAUGH described the Quality Schools Grant as established
in AS 14.17.480. The grant equals the districts' adjusted ADM
tines $16. This grant costs the state about $4 mllion. She
calcul ated what it would be for None's total state aid.

She pointed out that if the anmount appropriated by the
legislature is insufficient to neet the total anmount of public
school funding authorized, then all districts' Basic Need wll
be reduced pro rata.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- January 25, 2017



She showed a one-page summary of the Foundation Fundi ng Formul a
- FY2018 projection, a snapshot of the bottom line totals going
t hrough the fornul a.

8. 38: 59 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL expressed appreciation for a well-done
presentation. She suggested nunbering the slides next tinme. She
inquired if correspondence funding is "per student."

M5. LOBAUGH clarified that correspondence funding is 90 percent
times the ADM She added that two students can equal one ADM if
they are both part tine.

SENATOR G ESSEL used an exanpl e of a honeschool ed student who is
enrolled in the Anchorage School District for orchestra and
asked how t he ADM woul d be cal cul at ed.

M5. LOBAUGH expl ained that the orchestra class would be reported
as .25 ADM and the correspondence cl asses would be .75 ADM

8:41:16 AM

SENATOR QG ESSEL asked how i ndependent home schools are
cal cul at ed.

M5. LOBAUGH said they are not calculated; only public schools
are funded.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted that there are schools that are conpletely
correspondence. She asked how many schools |like that there are.

M5. LOBAUGH referred to page 8, colum L in the public school
funding docunent that shows which schools are wusing the
correspondence process.

8:42: 40 AM
CHAI R HUGHES noted the arrival of Senator Coghill.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked how many districts receive funds at the
| ocal contribution cap.

M5. LOBAUGH offered to provide that information.
SENATOR d ESSEL t hought Juneau funded to the cap.

MS. LOBAUGH bel i eved that was true.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 25, 2017



8:44: 05 AM
SENATOR BEGQ CH asked why Anchorage is used as the base.

M5. LOBAUGH recalled a district cost factor study done in the
early 2000s. She offered to provide information about it.

SENATOR BEA CH said he is asking for information purposes. He
wondered if Anchorage School District still has the | owest
costs.

M5. LOBAUGH said yes; the Yukon Flats District has the highest
costs.

SENATOR BEGQ CH asked if the cost study is done on a regular
basi s.

M5. LOBAUGH said the |last one was done in 2005 by the Institute
of Social and Econom c Research (ISER). The cost factors did not
get conpletely inplenmented until FY2013 and have not been
revisited since then.

8:46: 27 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked for the history of BSA adjustnents.

M5. LOBAUGH offered to provide that information in chart form
She related that the BSA was $5,380 in 2008 and it is $5,930 in
2017, an increase of $550.

8:47: 38 AM
SENATOR BEG CH asked if any of the districts qualify for the 45
percent | ocal contribution.

M5. LOBAUGH said there are three districts with 45 percent of
prior Basic Need: North Slope, Skagway, and Val dez, |argely due
to the pipeline or tourism in Skagway's case.

8:48: 28 AM

CHAIR HUGHES said she was inpressed by the presentation. She
asked how kindergarten is counted and why the word "may" 1is
used.

MS5. LOBAUCH replied that kindergarten is counted. The word "may"
is there because children are not required to attend school
until the age of 6, but they nmay attend at age 5.

CHAIR HUGHES asked about advantages of small schools not
nmer gi ng, such as receiving nore funding as two school s.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- January 25, 2017



M5. LOBAUGH thought it depended on the student count and ot her
factors. She provided an exanple of a conbined school of 110
students, which has an advantage over one 50-student school and
one 60-student school.

8:51: 05 AM

CHAIR HUGHES she cautioned not to disincentivizing school
consolidation, considering the fiscal gap and the anount that
goes toward educati on.

She asked how portable intensive needs funding is when a student
nove to anot her school m d-year.

8:51: 57 AM

M5. LOBAUGH provided an exanple of a student who was funded in
one district and noves to another district. That funding does
not follow the student. If the nove was within a district, it
does.

CHAIR HUGHES asked if there has been any discussion of fixing
that. She opined that it needs to be addressed.

MS. LOBOUGH did not know.

8:52: 57 AM

SENATOR BEG CH asked whether the eight school size adjustnents
were created to address the question of nuances in school size
and an attenpt to avoid duplication and "student hopping." He
t hought the categories were nmade to disincentivize abuse of the
f ormul a.

M5. LOBOUGH t hought that was a reasonabl e assessnent.

SENATOR BEAQ CH recal |l ed the Augenblick study conm ssioned by the
Legi slative Budget and Audit Conmttee two years ago, that
indicated that the school size adjustnments for students in a
school building were perhaps a disincentive to districts and nay
be unfair due to being inflexible. The study suggested that even
nore categories may be needed to all ow students nore variety.

MS. LOBAUGH agr eed.
SENATOR BEGQ CH used Juneau as an exanple of a district that

chose not to split the schools for many years in order to
mai ntai n sports teans.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- January 25, 2017



8:56: 20 AM

M5. LOBAUGH said ultimately Juneau split into two high schools
and now it works better for themin the fornula calculation. On
the other hand, Anchorage's ADM adjustnents in the school size
table decreases their benefits because they are such a large
district.

8:57:23 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked whether npbst high schools take advantage of
t he vocational technical adjustnents and, if so, how many.

M5. LOBAUGH explained that how those funds are wused are
determined by the schools. The departnent is aware that nost
districts have career and technical education and are utilizing
t hat fundi ng source.

CHAIR HUGHES asked if there is an adjustnment for use of
t echnol ogy.

M5. LOBAUGH said the formula does not apply to technol ogy. That
is covered through the Career and Technical Education (CTE)
adjustnment at the high school/mddle school level. At the
el enentary level, the Quality Schools Gant can be used for
t echnol ogy.

8:59:10 AM
CHAI R HUGHES asked if there are federal funds that m ght becone
avai |l abl e for technology use in the schools.

M5. LOBAUCH did not know. She suggested asking the federal grant
speci al i st.

SENATOR COGHI LL said technology has a huge inpact on districts
dependi ng on | ocati on and si ze.

9: 00: 38 AM

CHAI R HUGHES understood that when the formula was adjusted, the
topic of teacher retention was brought up. It was suggested that
the formula mght need to be adjusted in order to provide
salaries that mght draw and retain teachers to districts. She
pointed out that there is still a serious problem with teacher
recruitnment and retention. She asked if there was an adjustnent
made and if Ms. Lobaugh has retention data.

M5. LOBAUGH sai d she does not have that information.

9:01: 31 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- January 25, 2017



CHAIR HUGHES asked if there is anything in the forrmula to
accomodat e rapidly growi ng districts.

M5. LOBAUGH replied that there are only school size adjustnents.
CHAI R HUGHES noted the difficulty of keeping up with the grow h.

9:02: 22 AM

SENATOR BEG CH said that the growmh in Mit-Su is one of the
reasons he brought up the BSA. He asked what inpact having Mat-
Su as the base would have on the amount of noney Anchorage
recei ves.

MS. LOBAUGH said she cannot speak to that, but the cost study
woul d be a good resource for that information. She recalled that
the first cost study put Mat-Su as the base.

SENATOR BEG CH asked for a copy of that information. He referred
to the Augenblick study which concluded that Al aska has one of
the fairest and nost well-adjusted foundation fornulas in the
country. The study identified three areas of concern:
under fundi ng special needs, poverty, and mnority populations.
He wondered if Ms. Lobaugh recalls those findings.

MS. LOBAUCGH said she does not recall that information.

SENATOR BEG CH wondered if Conm ssioner Johnson recalls. He said
he brings it up because he wonders if the state is providing
enough resources for those special popul ations.

9:06:11 AM

M CHAEL JOHNSON, Ph.D., Comm ssioner, Departnent of Education
and Early Developnent (DEED), answered questions about the
foundation fornula. He said it has been sone time since he has
read the study, but thinks that Senator Begich's recollections
are correct. He offered to provide nore information on it.

SENATOR BEG CH recalled that teacher retention was a factor in
the Moore |lawsuit, and not as a part of the foundation formula
di scussion. It led to a settlement with DEED and the state.
Teacher retention was recognized by the court as a critical
conponent in providing a constitutional and adequate education
for Al askans. He asked Comm ssioner Johnson if that was correct.

COMM SSIONER  JOHNSON said it was, including principal and
superintendent retention and, currently, is one of the five

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- January 25, 2017



priorities the Governor outlined in the State of the State
address, .

9:07:54 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL asked to review court cases related to the
f oundati on fornmul a and consent decrees the state i s under.

CHAI R HUGHES agreed that teacher retention was part of the Mpore
lawsuit, but clarified that teacher retention was also a part of
t he foundation formula revisions.

M5. LOBAUGH thanked the committee for the opportunity to
present .

CHAI R HUGHES said the departnment could answer nore questions as
they arise fromconmm ttee nenbers.

9:09: 32 AM
CHAI R HUGHES noted the next neeting would address the baseline
for broadband access in rural schools.

9:10: 05 AM
There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee
Chair Hughes adjourned the Senate Education Standing Commttee
at 9:10 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- January 25, 2017



